

ORDINANCE NO. 15-34

AN ORDINANCE OF MANATEE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 2-22-9 OF THE MANATEE CODE OF ORDINANCES RELATING TO DESIGNATION OF CERTAIN ROADS PERMITTING THE OPERATION OF GOLF CARTS; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; AMENDING REQUIREMENTS FOR POSTING SIGNS; INCORPORATING PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTES RELATING TO GOLF CART OPERATION AND EQUIPMENT; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT AND PUNISHMENT PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES; AMENDING GOLF CART ROAD DESIGNATIONS AND GOLF CART CROSSING AREAS; CREATING GOLF CART ROAD DESIGNATIONS IN HEATHER HILLS ESTATES AND THE VILLAGE OF CORTEZ; CREATING GOLF CART CROSSING AREAS IN PALMETTO PINES GOLF COURSE; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Section 316.212, Florida Statutes, provides for the operation of golf carts upon public roads and streets; and

WHEREAS, Subsection 316.212(1), Florida Statutes, provides that golf carts may be operated upon a county road or street that has been designated by a county for use by golf carts; and

WHEREAS, Subsection 316.212(1), Florida Statutes, provides that, prior to designating a county road or street for use by golf carts, the county must first determine that golf carts may safely travel on or cross the public road or street, considering factors including the speed, volume, and character of motor vehicle traffic using the road or street; and

WHEREAS, Subsection 316.212(1), Florida Statutes, provides that, upon a determination that golf carts may be safely operated on a designated road or street, the county must post appropriate signs to indicate that such operation is allowed; and

WHEREAS, on February 3, 1987, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County passed and adopted Ordinance 87-05, which designated certain roads in Trailer Estates Park and Recreation District as golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, on June 21, 1988, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County passed and adopted Ordinance No. 88-27, which designated certain roads in El Conquistador Country Club as golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, on March 15, 1994, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County passed and adopted Ordinance 94-25, which designated certain roads in the Palm Aire area as golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, on February 7, 1995, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County approved and adopted Ordinance No. 95-11, which designated certain roads in Tara Golf and Country Club as golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, on November 2, 1999, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County approved and adopted Ordinance 99-52, which designated certain roads in River Club subdivision as golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, on August 5, 2003, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County approved and adopted Ordinance 03-44, which designated certain roads in Tidevue Estates subdivision as golf cart roads; and

WHEREAS, said ordinances also required Manatee County administrative staff to post appropriate signs on the designated roads and crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, said ordinances are codified as Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, county staff have reviewed the public roads and streets approved for the operation of golf carts and recommended revisions to said roads and streets by adding, deleting, changing, and specifying the golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, based on the recommendations of county staff and considering factors including the speed, volume, and character of motor vehicle traffic using the roads and streets, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County hereby determines that golf carts may safely travel on and cross the public roads and streets designated in this ordinance amending Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the county and the residents of the county to revise the public roads and streets approved for the operation of golf carts as recommended by county staff and to amend the golf cart roads and golf cart crossing areas designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances as set forth in this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, county staff have received a request from residents in Heather Hills Estates requesting that the Board of County Commissioners approve an ordinance designating certain roads and streets in said area as golf cart roads; and

WHEREAS, county staff have reviewed the request, evaluated the public roads and streets, and determined that the operation of golf carts is appropriate on certain roads and streets in Heather Hills Estates; and

WHEREAS, county staff have recommended revisions to the public roads and streets approved for the operation of golf carts by adding certain roads and streets in Heather Hills Estates to the golf cart roads designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, based on the recommendations of county staff and considering factors including the speed, volume, and character of motor vehicle traffic using the roads and streets, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County hereby determines that golf carts may safely travel on the public roads and streets in Heather Hills Estates designated in this ordinance amending Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the county and the residents of the county to revise the public roads and streets approved for the operation of golf carts by adding certain roads and streets in Heather Hills Estates and to amend the golf cart roads designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances as set forth in this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, county staff have received a request from residents in the Village of Cortez requesting that the Board of County Commissioners approve an ordinance designating certain roads and streets in said village as golf cart roads; and

WHEREAS, county staff have reviewed the request, evaluated the public roads and streets, and determined that the operation of golf carts is appropriate on certain roads and streets in the Village of Cortez; and

WHEREAS, county staff have recommended revisions to the public roads and streets approved for the operation of golf carts by adding certain roads and streets in the Village of Cortez to the golf cart roads designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, based on the recommendations of county staff and considering factors including the speed, volume, and character of motor vehicle traffic using the roads and streets, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County hereby determines that golf carts may safely travel on the public roads and streets in the Village of Cortez designated in this ordinance amending Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the county and the residents of the county to revise the public roads and streets approved for the operation of golf carts by adding certain roads and streets in the Village of Cortez and to amend the golf cart roads designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances as set forth in this ordinance; and

WHEREAS, county staff have received a request from residents in Palmetto Pines Golf Course requesting that the Board of County Commissioners approve an ordinance designating certain locations in said golf course as golf cart crossing areas; and

WHEREAS, county staff have reviewed the request, evaluated the public roads and streets and crossing areas, and determined that the location of golf cart crossing areas is appropriate at certain locations in Palmetto Pines Golf Course; and

WHEREAS, county staff have recommended revisions to the locations approved for golf cart crossing areas by adding certain locations in Palmetto Pines Golf Course to the golf cart crossing areas designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, based on the recommendations of county staff and considering factors including the speed, volume, and character of motor vehicle traffic using the roads and streets, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County hereby determines that golf carts may safely cross the public roads and streets at the locations in Palmetto Pines Golf Course designated in this ordinance amending Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County finds and

determines that it is in the best interest of the county and the residents of the county to revise the locations approved for golf cart crossing areas by adding certain locations in Palmetto Pines Golf Course and to amend the golf cart crossing areas designated in Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances as set forth in this ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF MANATEE COUNTY, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Section 2-22-9 of the Manatee County Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 2-22-9. Designation of certain roads permitting the operation of golf carts.

(a) The definitions of the applicable words and terms set forth in Sections 316.003 and 320.01, Florida Statutes, as amended, shall apply to this section.

(ba) The operation of a golf cart upon specified roads and streets of this county is permitted and golf carts may be operated upon those county roads and streets within the unincorporated area of Manatee County, Florida, set forth in ~~paragraph subsection (gf)(1) of this section.~~

(cb) The operation of a golf cart is permitted and golf cart crossing areas shall be established across those county roads and streets located within the unincorporated area of Manatee County, Florida, set forth in ~~paragraph subsection (gf)(2) of this section.~~

(de) The ~~county administrator or his designee transportation department of Manatee County~~ shall post appropriate signs on the roads and streets and at the crossings listed shown in subsection (gf) of this section to indicate warn motorists that the operation of a golf carts is allowed.

(ed) All applicable provisions relating to A golf cart operation and equipment set forth in Section 316.212, Florida Statutes, may only be operated as amended, are hereby incorporated provided by reference in subsections (a) and (b) of this section.

- ~~(1) During the hours between sunrise and sunset;~~
- ~~(2) Within one mile radius of a bona fide golf course;~~
- ~~(3) If the golf cart has been equipped with efficient brakes, reliable steering apparatus, safe tires, a rearview mirror, and red reflectorized warning devices in both front and rear;~~
- ~~(4) The warning signs required under subsection (c) of this section have been posted and remain posted.~~

(f) Pursuant to Subsection 316.212(9), Florida Statutes, the ~~The~~ provisions of this subsection ~~(d)~~ may be enforced and punished as provided in Chapters F.S. Ch. 316; and 318, Florida Statutes, as amended violations subject to the penalties provided therein.

(e) Nothing herein shall be deemed to permit the operation of golf carts in any manner not consistent with F.S. § 316.212, and any other applicable provisions of Florida law,

including, but not limited to, rules and regulations establishing equipment that must be maintained on the golf cart or the hours during which a golf cart may be operated on roads or streets.

- (gf) Golf cart road designations and golf cart crossing areas.
- (1) Golf cart road and street designations. Roads and streets within the following developments areas and districts:

a. Trailer Estates Park and Recreation District:

Marina Drive	<u>From Arizona Street to Michigan Minnesota Avenue</u>
Arizona Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to drainage easement Illinois Avenue</u>
Nebraska Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to Canal Way Drive Iowa Avenue</u>
<u>Nebraska Street</u>	<u>From Canal Way Drive to drainage easement</u>
<u>Massachusetts Street</u>	<u>From Florida Boulevard to Canal Way Drive</u>
<u>Massachusetts Street</u>	<u>From Canal Way Drive to drainage easement</u>
Massachusetts Street	<u>From Michigan Avenue to New York Avenue</u>
Connecticut Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to Canal Way Drive Pennsylvania Avenue</u>
<u>Connecticut Street</u>	<u>From Canal Way Drive to drainage easement</u>
California Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to drainage easement New York Avenue</u>
Dakota Street	<u>From Florida Canada Boulevard to Canal Way Drive</u>
<u>Dakota Street</u>	<u>From Canal Way Drive to drainage easement</u>
Washington Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to Canal Way Drive Park Lane</u>
<u>Washington Street</u>	<u>From Canal Way Drive to drainage</u>

	<u>easement</u>
Oregon Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to Canal Way Drive</u> <del>West Bayou</del>
<u>Oregon Street</u>	<u>From Canal Way Drive to drainage easement</u>
Texas Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to drainage easement</u> <del>East Bayou</del>
Kansas Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to drainage easement</u> <del>Marlin Lane</del>
New Jersey Street	<u>From Florida Boulevard to drainage easement</u> <del>Tarpon Lane</del>
Tennessee <del>Avenue</del> Street	<u>From New Jersey Street to cul-de-sac</u> <del>Bay Drive</del>
<u>American Way</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to Florida Boulevard</u> <del>East Beach</del>
Ohio Avenue	<u>From Marina Drive to Indiana Avenue</u> <del>West Beach</del>
Indiana Avenue	<u>From Marina Drive to Ohio Avenue</u> <del>Alaska</del>
<u>Alaska Street</u>	<u>From Ohio Avenue to Florida Boulevard</u>
<u>Bay Drive</u>	<u>From US 41 to Pennsylvania Avenue</u>
<u>Canada Boulevard</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to Florida Boulevard</u>
<u>Canal Way Drive</u>	<u>From Arizona Street to New Jersey Street</u>
<u>East Bayou Lane</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to East Beach Drive</u>
<u>East Beach Drive</u>	<u>From East Bayou Lane to Tarpon Lane</u>
<u>Illinois Avenue</u>	<u>From Marina Drive to Minnesota Avenue</u>
<u>Iowa Avenue</u>	<u>From Marina Drive to Michigan Avenue</u>

<u>Marlin Lane</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to East Beach Drive</u>
<u>Michigan Avenue</u>	<u>From Canada Boulevard to Iowa Avenue</u>
<u>Michigan Avenue</u>	<u>From Marina Drive to Massachusetts Street</u>
<u>Minnesota Avenue</u>	<u>From Marina Drive to Illinois Avenue</u>
<u>New York Avenue</u>	<u>From Canada Boulevard to Bay Drive</u>
<u>New York Avenue</u>	<u>From Pennsylvania Avenue to Massachusetts Street</u>
<u>Park Lane</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to West Beach Drive</u>
<u>Pennsylvania Avenue</u>	<u>From Canada Boulevard to Wisconsin Avenue</u>
<u>Pennsylvania Avenue</u>	<u>From American Way to Bay Drive</u>
<u>Tarpon Lane</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to East Beach Drive</u>
<u>West Bayou Lane</u>	<u>From Bay Drive to West Beach Drive</u>
<u>West Beach Drive</u>	<u>From Park Lane to West Bayou Lane</u>
<u>Wisconsin Avenue</u>	<u>From Canada Boulevard to Pennsylvania Avenue</u>

b. El Conquistador Country Club:

<del>El Conquistador Parkway</del>	<del>Between 34th Street West and Courtside Drive</del>
43rd Street West	<u>From <del>Between Avenida Madera and El Conquistador Parkway</del> to Avenida Madera</u>
45th Street West	<u>From <del>Between El Conquistador Parkway to 47th Street West</del> and La Jolla Drive</u>
<u>47th Street West</u>	<u>From La Jolla Drive to 45th Street West</u>
La Jolla Drive	<del>Between 45th Street West and the dead end</del>

La Vista Lane	<del>Between 45th Street West and the dead end</del>
61st Avenue Terrace West	<del>From</del> <u>Between 43rd Street West to cul-de-sac</u> <del>and the dead end</del>
Pinar Drive	From 43rd Street West to 43rd Street West
c. Palm Aire:	
<del>Whitfield Avenue</del>	<del>Doral Drive</del>
Tournament Boulevard	<u>From Lockwood Ridge Road to Palm Aire Drive Merion Way</u>
West Country Club Drive	<u>From Tournament Boulevard to West Country Club Drive North St. Andrews Lane</u>
West Country Club Drive North	<u>From West Country Club Heron Drive to Whitfield Avenue</u>
West Country Club Lane	<u>From Whitfield Avenue to West Country Club Lakeside Drive North</u>
Canterbury Drive	<u>From West Country Club Lakes Drive to cul-de-sac</u>
Medalist Road	<u>From Canterbury Drive to Inverness Drive Country Lakes Circle</u>
Inverness Drive	<u>From Canterbury Drive to cul-de-sac Country Lakes Trail</u>
Canterbury Way	<u>From Canterbury Drive to Inverness Drive Country Lakes Lane</u>
Hermitage Circle	<u>From Inverness 73rd Drive East to cul-de-sac</u>
Thunderbird Circle	<u>From Inverness Drive to cul-de-sac 73rd Avenue Circle East</u>
Palm Aire Drive	<u>From Tournament Boulevard to Whitfield Avenue 74th Terrace East</u>
Estates Drive	<u>From Conservatory Circle to Palm Aire Drive 74th Place East</u>



Estates Circle	<u>From Estates Drive to cul-de-sac 75th Terrace East</u>
Cypress Lake Drive	<u>From Conservatory Drive to Cypress Lake Circle 58th Court East</u>
Conservatory Drive	<u>From Palm Aire Drive to dead end Links Court</u>
Conservatory Circle	<u>From Conservatory Eagle Creek Drive to Cypress Lake Drive</u>
Palm Aire Circle	<u>From Palm Aire Drive to cul-de-sac Broadmoor Pines Boulevard</u>
<u>Timber Lake</u> Timberlake Circle	<u>From Timber Lake Clubside Drive to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Timber Lake</u> Timberlake Drive	<u>From Palm Aire Drive to 200 feet east of 62nd Court East Misty Oaks Boulevard</u>
<u>Timber Lake</u> Timberlake Lane	<u>From Timber Lake Drive to Timber Lake Drive Misty Oaks Street</u>
Palm Aire Lane	<u>From Palm Aire Drive to Country Club Way Misty Oaks Court</u>
Country Club Way	<u>From Palm Aire Lane to eastern dead end Misty Oaks Drive</u>
Pine Terrace Drive	60th Street Circle East
Avista Drive	62nd Court East
Golf Pointe Drive	<u>From Whitfield Avenue to cul-de-sac Lakeside Woods Circle</u>
Golf Pointe Way	Preserves Court
Golf Pointe Circle	Gardens Drive
Fairway Bend Drive	<u>From Whitfield Avenue to Fairway Bend Lane Gardens Circle</u>
Fairway Bend Circle	<u>From cul-de-sac to cul-de-sac Palm Lakes Court</u>
Fairway Bend Lane	<u>From cul-de-sac to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Broadmoor Pines Boulevard</u>	<u>From Country Club Way to cul-de-</u>

sac

<u>Country Lakes Circle</u>	<u>From Country Lakes Drive to West Country Club Lane</u>
<u>Country Lakes Drive</u>	<u>From Country Lakes Circle to Whitfield Avenue</u>
<u>Country Lakes Lane</u>	<u>From Country Lakes Circle to Country Lakes Circle</u>
<u>Country Lakes Trail</u>	<u>From Country Lakes Circle to Country Lakes Circle</u>
<u>Desoto Woods Drive</u>	<u>From Timber Lake Drive to dead end</u>
<u>Fairlinks Court</u>	<u>From Links Court to Fairway Lakes Drive</u>
<u>Fairway Lakes Drive</u>	<u>From Whitfield Avenue to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Fairwoods Circle</u>	<u>From Fairlinks Court to Fairway Lakes Drive</u>
<u>Gardens Circle</u>	<u>From Gardens Drive to 550 feet south of Gardens Drive</u>
<u>Gardens Drive</u>	<u>From Whitfield Avenue to 320 feet west of Palm Lakes Court</u>
<u>Ithaca Lane</u>	<u>From Palm Lakes Court to 300 feet west of Palm Lakes Court</u>
<u>Lakeside Woods Circle</u>	<u>From Whitfield Avenue to Lakeside Woods Circle</u>
<u>Links Court</u>	<u>From Country Club Way to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Misty Oaks Boulevard</u>	<u>From Timber Lake Drive to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Misty Oaks Court</u>	<u>From Misty Oaks Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Misty Oaks Drive</u>	<u>From Misty Oaks Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Misty Oaks Street</u>	<u>From Misty Oaks Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>

- |    |                                      |  |
|----|--------------------------------------|--|
|    | <u>Palm Lakes Court</u>              | <u>From Gardens Drive to cul-de-sac</u>  |
| d. | Tara Golf and Country Club:          |  |
|    | <del>1. Tara Boulevard.</del>        |  |
|    | 2. Stone River Road.                 | <u>From 1,600 feet east of Manor Hill Way to Drewy's Bluff at 200 feet west of Braden River Road</u> |
|    | <del>3. Drewry's Bluff.</del>        | <u>From Stone River Road to Stone River Road</u>   |
|    | 4. Pleasant Hill Road.               | <u>From Tara Boulevard to Turner's Gap Road</u>  |
|    | <del>5. Turner's Gap Road.</del>     | <u>From Pleasant Hill Road to Turner's Gap Road</u>  |
|    | 6. Peach Tree Creek <u>Road.</u>     | <u>From Pleasant Hill Road to Linger Lodge Road</u>  |
|    | <del>7. Chickasaw Bayou Road.</del>  | <u>From Tara Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>   |
|    | <u>Brookhaven Place</u>              | <u>From Peach Tree Creek Road to cul-de-sac</u>  |
|    | <u>Pleasant Grove Court</u>          | <u>From Pleasant Hill Road to cul-de-sac</u>   |
|    | <u>Seven Pines Drive</u>             | <u>From Pleasant Hill Road to cul-de-sac</u>   |
|    | <del>8. The Plantations Drive.</del> |  |
|    | <del>9. Gottonwood Street.</del>     |  |
|    | <del>10. Liberty Avenue.</del>       |  |
| e. | River Club Community:                |  |
|    | Boxthorn Place                       | <u>From Cherry Hills Avenue Circle to cul-de-sac</u> Firestone Drive                                 |
|    | Cherry Hills Avenue Circle           | <u>From River Club Boulevard to River Club Boulevard</u> Firethorn Place                             |
|    | Cheval Place                         | <u>From Pine Valley Street to dead end</u> Glen Abbey Lane   |
|    | Clubhouse Drive                      | <u>From River Club Boulevard to 99th</u>   |

	<u>Street East Glenmore Avenue</u>
<del>Cooper Bridge Lane</del>	<del>Governor's Club Place</del>
Coventry Court	<u>From Old Hyde Park Place to cul-de-sac Harrington Lane</u>
Cypress Point Drive	<u>From Pine Valley Street to Cheval Place Hickory Hammock</u>
Dornough Lane	<u>From Laurel Valley Avenue Circle to Laurel Valley Avenue Circle</u>
Dunes Court	<u>From Royal Lytham Avenue to cul-de-sac Medinah Court</u>
Oakbrooke Circle East	<u>From Clubhouse Drive to Clubhouse Drive Royal Lytham Avenue</u>
Oakmont Way	<u>From Clubhouse Drive to cul-de-sac Shoal Creek Street Circle</u>
<del>Old Old Hyde Park Place</del>	<u>From Tori Way to cul-de-sac Silverado Circle</u>
Palmbrooke Terrace	<u>From River Club Boulevard to cul-de-sac Senesta Court</u>
Partridge Street Circle	<u>From River Club Boulevard to River Club Boulevard Spyglass Lane</u>
Pinehurst Place	<u>From River Club Boulevard to cul-de-sac Sweetwater Avenue</u>
Pine Valley Street	<u>From River Club Boulevard to Cherry Hills Avenue Circle Tom O'Shanter</u>
River Birch Court	<u>From Cherry Hills Avenue Circle to cul-de-sac Tori Way</u>
<del>Riversedge Riveredge Street Circle</del>	<u>From Cherry Hills Avenue Circle to Cherry Hills Avenue Circle Tralee Way</u>
Royal Calcutta Place	<u>From cul-de-sac to dead end Winged Foot Terrace</u>
<u>Baltusrol Place</u>	<u>From Glen Abbey Lane to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Braden Run</u>	<u>From 230 feet west of Glen Abbey</u>

	<u>Lane to 220 feet east of Glen Abbey Lane</u>
<u>Firestone Drive</u>	<u>From Pine Valley Street to dead end</u>
<u>Firethorn Place</u>	<u>From Cherry Hills Avenue Circle to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Fountain Grass Lane</u>	<u>From Cherry Hills Avenue Circle to Old Hyde Park Place</u>
<u>Glen Abbey Lane</u>	<u>From 99th Street East to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Glenmore Avenue</u>	<u>From River Club Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Governors Club Place</u>	<u>From Cherry Hills Avenue Circle to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Harrington Lane</u>	<u>From Old Hyde Park Place to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Hickory Hammock Circle</u>	<u>From Clubhouse Drive to Clubhouse Drive</u>
<u>Laurel Valley Avenue Circle</u>	<u>From River Club Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Medinah Court</u>	<u>From Clubhouse Drive to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Royal Lytham Avenue</u>	<u>From River Club Boulevard to Glenmore Avenue</u>
<u>Shoal Creek Street Circle</u>	<u>From Winged Foot Terrace to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Silverado Circle</u>	<u>From River Club Boulevard to River Club Boulevard</u>
<u>Sonesta Court</u>	<u>From Palmbrooke Terrace to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Spyglass Lane</u>	<u>From Braden Run to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Sweetwater Avenue</u>	<u>From River Club Boulevard to Laurel Valley Avenue Circle</u>
<u>Tam O' Shanter Place</u>	<u>From River Club Boulevard to cul-de-sac</u>
<u>Tori Way</u>	<u>From Harrington Lane to cul-de-sac</u>

Tralee Way From Harrington Lane to Royal Calcutta Place

Winged Foot Terrace From River Club Boulevard to Shoal Creek Street Circle

Woodborne Place From Clubhouse Drive to cul-de-sac

f. Tidevue Estates Subdivision:

10th Street Court East From 41st Avenue East to 46th Avenue Drive East

11th Street East From 41st Avenue East to 43rd Avenue Drive East

11th Street Court East From 41st Avenue Drive East to 43rd 45th Avenue Drive East

12th Street East From 41st Avenue East to 42nd Avenue East

12th Street Court East From 41st Avenue East to 45th Avenue Drive East

13th Street East From 41st Avenue Drive East to 45th Avenue Drive East

14th Street East From 41st Avenue East to dead end the cul-de-sac

14th Street East From 13th Street East to 45th Avenue Drive East

15th Street East From 45th Avenue Drive East to ~~the~~ cul-de-sac

15th Street Court East From 45th Avenue Drive East to 47th Avenue Drive East

16th Street East From 44th Avenue Drive East to 45th Avenue East

16th Street Court East From 44th Avenue Drive East to 47th Avenue Drive East

41st Avenue East From US 301 to the cul-de-sac

41st Avenue Drive East From 41st Avenue East to 12th Street Court East to 41st Avenue

	East
42nd Avenue East	<u>From 11th Street Court East to 12th Street Court</u> <del>41st Avenue Drive East</del>
42nd Avenue Drive East	<u>From</u> US 301 to 11th Street Court East
<u>43rd Avenue East</u>	<u>From 11th Street Court East to 12th Street Court East</u>
43rd Avenue East	<u>From</u> 15th Street East to the cul-de-sac
43rd Avenue Drive East	<u>From</u> 10th Street Court East to 12th Street Court East
44th Avenue East	<u>From</u> 14th Street East to the cul-de-sac
44th Avenue Drive East	<u>From</u> 10th Street Court East to 12th Street Court East
<u>44th Avenue Drive East</u>	<u>From 16th Street Court East to cul-de-sac</u>
45th Avenue East	<u>From</u> US 301 to 12th Street Court East
<u>45th Avenue East</u>	<u>From 13th Street East to 14th Street East</u>
45th Avenue East	<u>From 15th</u> <del>13th</del> Street East to 16th Street Court East
<u>45th Avenue Drive East</u>	<u>From 10th Street Court East to 12th Street Court East</u>
45th Avenue Drive East	<u>From 12th</u> <del>10th</del> Street Court East to 17th Street East/Memphis Road
46th Avenue East	<u>From</u> 10th Street Court East to 46th Avenue Drive East
46th Avenue East	<u>From</u> 15th Street Court East to 16th Street Court East
46th Avenue Drive East	<u>From</u> 10th Street Court East to 45th Avenue Drive East
46th Avenue Drive East	<u>From</u> 15th Street Court East to 16th

Street Court East

- 47th Avenue East From 15th Street Court East to 16th Street Court East
- 47th Avenue Drive East From 15th Street Court East to 17th Street East/Memphis Road

g. Heather Hills Estates:

- 1st Street West From 48th Avenue West to 50th Avenue Terrace West
- 2nd Street West From 49th Avenue Drive West to 50th Avenue West
- 3rd Street West From 48th Avenue West to 49th Avenue West
- 3rd Street West From 49th Avenue Drive West to 50th Avenue West
- 4th Street West From 48th Avenue Drive West to 50th Avenue Terrace West
- 48th Avenue West From 1st Street West to 3rd Street West
- 48th Avenue Drive West From 1st Street West to 5th Street West
- 48th Avenue Terrace West From 1st Street West to 3rd Street West
- 49th Avenue West From 1st Street West to 4th Street West
- 49th Avenue Drive West From 1st Street West to 4th Street West
- 49th Avenue Terrace West From 3rd Street West to 5th Street West
- 50th Avenue West From 1st Street West to 4th Street West
- 50th Avenue Drive West From 1st Street West to 4th Street West
- 50th Avenue Plaza West From 1st Street West to 4th Street West



	<u>50th Avenue Terrace West</u>	<u>From 1st Street West to 4th Street West</u>
h.	<u>Village of Cortez:</u>	
	<u>45th Avenue West</u>	<u>From 119th Street West to 125th Street West</u>
	<u>45th Avenue Drive West</u>	<u>From 121st Street Court West to dead end</u>
	<u>46th Avenue West</u>	<u>From 123rd Street West to 124th Street West</u>
	<u>119th Street West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to dead end</u>
	<u>121st Street Court West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to dead end</u>
	<u>123rd Street West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to 46th Avenue West</u>
	<u>123rd Street Court West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to 46th Avenue West</u>
	<u>124th Street West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to 46th Avenue West</u>
	<u>124th Street Court West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to Bayview Avenue</u>
	<u>125th Street West</u>	<u>From Cortez Road to dead end</u>
	<u>Bayview Avenue</u>	<u>From 124th Street West to 124th Street Court West</u>

(2) Designation of golf cart crossing areas. Crossings at the following locations:

a. Trailer Estates Park and Recreation District:

~~At the traffic light where Canada Boulevard intersects Florida Boulevard at Canada Boulevard.~~

b. El Conquistador Country Club:

1. ~~At the signalized crossing on El Conquistador Parkway at 200 feet west of between 43rd Street West and Country Club Drive.~~

2. ~~Across 43rd Street West at 225 feet north of the marked and signed locations between 61st Avenue Terrace West and Pinar Drive.~~

3. ~~Across 43rd Street West at 60 feet south of the marked and signed location between Pinar Drive and Avenida Madera.~~
4. 43rd Street West at 200 feet south of Avenida Madera.
5. 43rd Street West at 130 feet north of El Conquistador Parkway.
6. 43rd Street West at 300 feet north of El Conquistador Parkway.

c. Palm Aire:

1. Canterbury Drive at 250 feet south of West Country Club Drive.
2. Country Club Way at 350 feet north of Links Court.
3. Country Club Way at 50 feet east of Whitfield Avenue.
4. Fairway Lakes Drive at 20 feet east of Whitfield Avenue.
5. Links Court at 500 feet north of Country Club Way.
6. Misty Oaks Boulevard at 300 feet north of Timber Lake Drive.
7. Whitfield Avenue at Country Club Way.
8. Whitfield Avenue at Gardens Drive.
9. Whitfield Avenue at 150 feet south of Golf Pointe Drive.
10. Whitfield Avenue at West Country Club Drive North and/or Country Lakes Drive.

d. Tara Golf and Country Club:

1. Stone River Road at 500 feet north of Drewry's Bluff.
2. Stone River Road at 320 feet west of Tara Boulevard.
- ~~3.~~ Drewry's Bluff at 2,100 feet west of Tara Boulevard.
4. Drewry's Bluff at 2,300 feet west of Tara Boulevard.
- ~~5.~~ Pleasant Hill Road at 200 feet north of Peach Tree Creek Road.
6. Pleasant Hill Road at 120 feet east of Pleasant Grove Court.
7. Chickasaw Bayou Road at 30 feet west of Tara Boulevard.
8. Tara Boulevard at Stone River Road.

- e. River Club Community:
  - 1. 6002 Glen Abbey Lane at 220 feet east of 99th Street East. (~~west property line~~)
  - 2. Braden Run Boulevard at 220 feet east ~~200' west~~ of Glen Abbey Lane.
  - 3. Braden Run Boulevard at 230 feet ~~150'~~ west of Glen Abbey Lane.
  - 4. Braden Run Boulevard at 180 feet ~~150'~~ west of River Club Boulevard.
  - 5. Cherry Hills Avenue Circle at 400 feet west of River Club Boulevard.
  - 6. Clubhouse Drive at 150 feet west ~~300' east~~ of River Club Boulevard. ~~Oakmont Drive~~
  - 7. Clubhouse Drive at 150 feet south of Woodborne Place.
  - 8. Pine Valley Street Road at 160 feet ~~150'~~ east of River Club Pine Dale Boulevard.  
~~River Club Boulevard at 150' north of the bridge~~  
~~River Club Boulevard at 100' south of the bridge~~
  - 9. River Club Boulevard at 500 feet south ~~350' north~~ of Glenmore Avenue. ~~Pine Valley Street~~
  - 10. River Club Boulevard at 50 feet south of Pinehurst Place. ~~Street (south side of intersection)~~
- f. Palmetto Pines Golf Course.
  - 1. Golf Course Road at 400 feet east of Spencer Parrish Road.
  - 2. Golf Course Road at 940 feet east of Spencer Parrish Road.

Section 2. This ordinance shall be codified in the Manatee County Code of Ordinances.

Section 3. All ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance, including but not limited to, conflicting provisions of Ordinance 87-05, Ordinance No. 88-27, Ordinance 94-25, Ordinance No. 95-11, Ordinance 99-52, and Ordinance 03-44, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 4. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this

end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable.

Section 5. This ordinance shall take effect upon filing with the State of Florida Secretary of State.

APPROVED AND ENACTED by the Board of County Commissioners of Manatee County, Florida, with a quorum present and voting, on the \_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2015.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
OF MANATEE COUNTY, FLORIDA

By: \_\_\_\_\_  
Chairperson

ATTEST: Angelina M. Colonnese  
Clerk Ad Interim  
Manatee County Clerk of the Circuit Court and Comptroller

By: \_\_\_\_\_